
Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - July 6, 2009

Page 1

The regular meeting of the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey
was held on July 6, 2009 at 7:00 p.m. in the meeting room of the Township Hall, 2600 Bayshore Road, Villas, New
 Jersey.

The Clerk announced that the meeting was being held in compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act and that
adequate notice of the meeting had been provided according to law.

The following members of Council were present for roll call taken by the Clerk:

Councilmember Thomas Conrad
Councilmember Wayne Mazurek
Councilmember Glenn Douglass

Deputy Mayor Kevin Lare
Mayor Michael Beck

Also present: Anthony Monzo, Solicitor and Kathleen McPherson, Manager

Recognition of Achievements of Retiring SFC William Hienkel & Lt. Chris Winter
Mayor Beck asked Chief Donohue to say a few words.
Chief Donohue thanked Mayor Beck, Manager McPherson and Council for honoring the officers.  He said they both
had been on the force for 25 years and had been through a lot.  He said he would miss them.
Mayor Beck read a proclamation honoring Chris Winter for his achievements and congratulated him on his up
coming retirement.
Mayor Beck read a proclamation honoring Sergeant First Class Hienkel of his achievements during his tenur and
congratulated him on his retirement.
Mayor Beck said it was so few words to recognize the long careers of the officers.

Certificate of Recognition for Jennifer Anzelone
Mayor Beck presented Officer Anzelone with certificate of recognition and a member of MADD had said a few words. 
She had thanked Officer Anzelone for her work and said there were far to many drunk drivers and if wasn �t for the
officers on the roads the public would be in more danger.  She said to keep up the good work.

Review of Consent and Regular Agenda Items
No comments from Council on the consent agenda.

Public Questions on Consent Agenda and/or Regular Agenda Items
Joe Winters of Villas asked about the Jurisdictional Agreement.
Manager McPherson explained.

Consent Agenda
Approval of Minutes June 15, 2009, June 29, 2009



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - July 6, 2009

Page 2

Res. #2009-182, Renewal of Liquor License for Achristavest LLC and Grand Beach Club for the year 2009-
2010 (annual renewals)

Res. #2009-183, Approval of the Lower Township  Emergency Operations Plan (Required approval of plan
prepared by Emergency Management Coordinator for 2009 - 2013)

Res. #2009-184, Dept. of Transportation Jurisdictional Agreement - Route 9 Bennett �s Crossing
Res. #2009-185, Authorization for Payout of Accumulated Compensatory Time (2008 Comp time payout -

various amounts 11 Police & 1 Dispatcher - Total $60,251.58)
Res. #2009-186, Authorization for Pay Out of Terminal Leave (Sgt. Hienkel - $80,850.77 - Retired)
Res. #2009-187, Authorizing Payout of Terminal Leave (E. Dutill - $742.02 - Retired)
Res. #2009-188, Issuance of  Ice Cream Peddling License to Fudgy Wudgy (Renewal of 2 licenses for Ice

Cream Trucks)
Res. #2009-189, Authorizing Interlocal Agreement with Middle Township for Animal Control Services
Res. #2009-190, Payment of Vouchers, $1,872,598.59
Res. #2009-191, Renewal of Commercial Excavation (Gravel Pit) Licenses for Thomas F. Brodesser, Jr.

(annual renewal of 2 licenses)
Res. #2009-192, A Resolution Requesting Release of Demolition Bond for Block 40, Lot 9, 216 East

Jacksonville Avenue, Villas ($500 Bond released - work completed)
Res. #2009-193, Rejection of Bid for Lower Township Grounds & Parks (Only 1 bid received, to be rebid in

Nov. for 2010)
Res. #2009-194, Resolution Approving Project Proposal Between Hatch Mott Mac Donald and the

Township of Lower for Engineering Services Related to Roofing System Repair for the
Public Safety Building (Total cost for Design, Bid Award & Construction Phase Services
$36,700)

Res. #2009-195, Resolution Approving Project Proposal Between Hatch Mott Mac Donald and the
Township of Lower for Engineering Services Related to Application Preparation for
Coastal General Permit for Beach & Dune Maintenance (Total cost for all DEP permit
application requirements including public notices etc.  $11,600)

Res. #2009-196, Authorizing Sale of Personal Property Not Needed for Public Use by Private Sale
(Purchase of service weapon by retired Police Sgt.)

Res. #2009-197, Resolution Approving Project Proposal Between Hatch Mott Mac Donald and the
Township of Lower for Engineering Services Related to Phase I, Municipal Parking Lot
Improvements (Survey, Base Map Preparation & Conceptual Design - Total Costs -
$27,300)

Res. #2009-198, Resolution Appointing a Municipal Housing Liaison for the Township of Lower (Colleen
Crippen)

Res. #2009-199, Resolution Congratulating Lieutenant Chris Winter Upon His Upcoming Retirement and
Recognizing His Career Achievements

Res. #2009-200, Resolution of the Township of Lower Approving a Settlement Agreement in the Litigation
Entitled Margaret Vitelli & Joseph Vitelli v. Lower Township, Joseph Jackson, Et
Al,Docket No.  CPM-L-65-08

Res. #2009-201, Resolution Approving Amendment to the Lower Township Office Worker �s Association,
Local #3779 Agreement (Adds the title of Principal Clerk to Grade Three)

Res. #2009-202, Resolution Approving Amendment to the Lower Township Supervisor �s Union (Addition of
QPA Title)

Res. #2009-203 Resolution Congratulating Sergeant First Class William Hienkel Upon His Retirement and



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - July 6, 2009

Page 3

Recognizing His Career Achievements
Ord.  #2009-08, Salary and Benefit Ordinance for the Township of Lower, 1st rdg. (Updated ranges and

titles for employees to meet all current contracts obligations through the end of the
contract terms.) 2nd rdg. July 20, 2009

Ord.#2009-09, An Ordinance of the Township of Lower Amending Section 3-23 of the Lower Township
Administrative Code, 2nd rdg. July 20, 2009

Councilmember Douglass motioned to adopt the consent agenda items,  seconded by Councilmember Mazurek.
The consent agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember
Mazurek,  �yes �, Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor  Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck ,  �yes �.
 
Regular Agenda
Res. #2009-204 Approval of Voucher, $11,166.00 (Rustic Landscaping - Work at Freeman Douglass

Memorial Park)
Mayor Beck asked the Solicitor to explain the resolution.
Solicitor Monzo said it was a payment made to Rustic Landscaping which was a company owned by Deputy Mayor
Lare �s brother.  He said it had come up at the last Council Meeting and Deputy Mayor Lare didn �t take part in any
discussion as he should not have because of the relationship to the contractor.  The contract was above the quote
limit, but below the bid threshold.  He said it was budgeted and awarded by the Manager after soliciting quotes from
various contractors in the area.  
Solicitor Monzo said requests were made to 7 or 8 contractors -  3 submitted qualifying quotes, 1 submitted the
paperwork late and 4 did not respond.  The lowest quote was submitted by Rustic Landscaping and awarded.   He
said there wasn �t anything unethical or illegal about a relative of a member of the governing body performing work
for the Township provided the member of the governing body doesn �t participate in any discussion and engage in the
process of the award, which was the case.  He said based upon his review Deputy Mayor Lare had no discussion
what so ever in the decision to award the contract.  He said when the matter came up on the agenda he did not
participate in any discussions.  He said it was pulled from the consent agenda to be voted on separate without
Deputy Mayor Lare participating.  
Solicitor Monzo said in his opinion the process was ethical, legal and should be no concern of Council and to be
voted on with the 4 remaining Councilmembers with the exclusion of Deputy Mayor Lare.

Councilmember Conrad motioned to adopt the resolution, seconded by Councilmember Douglass.  The resolution
was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember Mazurek,  �yes �,
Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor Lare,  �abstain �, Mayor Beck,  �yes �.

Ord.  #2009-7, An Ordinance Amending the Code of the Township of Lower County of Cape May and
State of New Jersey (COAH & Affordable Housing) 

Mayor Beck asked for public comment on the ordinance.
There were no comments.
Mayor Beck closed the public portion.
Councilmember Conrad motioned to adopt the resolution, seconded by Councilmember Douglass.  The resolution
was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember Mazurek,  �yes �,
Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck,  �yes �.



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - July 6, 2009

Page 4

Administrative Reports
Personnel Action Report 
May Report - Municipal Judge & Municipal Court

Council Comments
Councilmember Conrad said next Monday would be meet your Councilman Ward 1 and he would be there until 830.  

South Jersey Gas Company
He said South Jersey Gas was working in Ward 1 and if any one had concerns they could call him.
Councilmember Douglass said he had complaints about South Jersey Gas.
Manager McPherson said they were not working on Bayshore Road on Fridays due to the traffic.
Mayor Beck said when they contacted South Jersey Gas they accommodated the Township.

Fireworks Display
Councilmember Douglass said they fireworks display was nice and they had a good attendance.
Deputy Mayor Lare congratulated the Recreation Department on their work for the fireworks.
Mayor Beck agreed it was well ran.

Water Hook Up
Mayor Beck had a letter from Steve Sheftz to Jerry Keeland who would be having a meeting on July 28, 2009 at 7
p.m. at Township Hall.  He said it would help owners of single family homes who may need help with providing water
for their homes.
He said Mr. Keeland would explain the program and they would loan up to $10,000.00 and a 10 year payback.
Mayor Beck thanked Mr. Sheftz for his efforts.

Whale of a Day Event
Mayor Beck said the Whale of a Day event would be held on July 11th and was a fantastic event.
Councilmember Conrad thanked the Police and Fire Depts. and all the volunteers who helped with the July
fireworks.

Public Comments

Dogs on the Bay
Bill Connors of 3904 Shore Drive said Philadelphia Magazine had listed the 3 best beaches for dog walking.  He said
Lower Township was listed.  He didn �t think the Township wanted that type of recognition.  He felt everyone had the
right to enjoy the beach without worrying about animal waste.  
Mr. Connor said many people let their dogs run without a leash.  He felt the Township needed to enforce the
regulations or keep the dogs off the beach in the summer.
Councilmember Douglass said he understood his concerns.  He walked his dogs on a leash and did tell others who
had their dogs off leash.  He said he had brought it to animal controls attention.
Mr. Connor said he had to go to Cape May to get away from it.
Mayor Beck said there were bags for animal waste at the entrances to the bay.
Councilmember Mazurek said the beachfront had changed over the years.  He said he had also seen a lot of dogs
running loose.  He said at some point they may have to limit the hours or areas where animals were permitted.
Bill Greenfield of Villas said they were painting dog owners with a big brush, he said many people were responsible
dog owners.  He didn �t agree with not letting the dogs on the beach.
Mayor Beck said they couldn �t post someone there 24 / 7.  He said if they couldn �t get a hold of the situation they
may have to limit the hours.
Mike McGinnis of 805 Shore Drive said last year they had to call the police for an animal who defecated on their



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - July 6, 2009

Page 5

property.  He said the Police called Animal Control who didn �t know how to write a ticket.  He said many were
responsible dog owners and many weren �t.

DAV Van
Steve Sheftz said the Township was fortunate to have a DAV Van and volunteer drivers to go to the VA Hospital.  He
said the volunteers now had a pass and could now drive without having to pay the toll on the bridge.
Mayor Beck said Eileen Kreis helped with that.

Maintenance Program
Steve Sheftz said there was a problem at the end of Arizona Avenue.  He said the Township did have a
maintenance program but was not up to date like Egg Harbor Township.  He suggested to get copies of other
Municipalities maintenance code.
Mayor Beck said they weren �t playing around with code enforcement.  He said they were out every day and have
taken on the ones who had been ongoing for years.

Water Hook Up 
Bob Fisher of 20 Langs Avenue asked if everyone would be eligible for 0% financing through the program.  He said
he wasn �t in favor of getting water he didn �t need.
Mayor Beck said they would have lost a lot of grant money and a lot of people needed it.

Shore Drive - One Way for the Summer
Joan McGinnis, 805 Shore Drive asked if Council would consider making Shore Drive one way for the summer.
Mayor Beck said they couldn �t just do that, you can �t just change the traffic pattern.
Manager McPherson said DEP would not permit the Township to do anything to the dunes but maintenance for
traffic and safety.
Mike McGinnis of 805 Shore Drive said he understood there was a 40' right of way, why couldn �t they use that.
Mayor Beck said they approached DEP and were shot down.
Mr. McGinnis said he was asking for 30' and commented it was getting bad along that road.
Councilmember Mazurek said he called DEP and was told it was dunes and they wouldn �t budge.

There being no further comment, Councilmember    motioned to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Councilmember   
the meeting unanimously adjourned by verbal  �ayes � at 7:47 p.m.

__________________________ __________________________
           Mayor Township Clerk

Approved: July 20, 2009


